
 
 

 
 

CABINET MEMBER SIGNING 
 

Thursday, 23rd March, 2023, 10.30 am 
 
Members: Councillors Sarah Williams 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

 
To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
A member with a disclosable pecuniary interest or a prejudicial interest in a 
matter who attends a meeting of the authority at which the matter is 
considered: 
 
(i) must disclose the interest at the start of the meeting or when the interest 
becomes apparent, and 
(ii) may not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must 
withdraw from the meeting room. 
 
A member who discloses at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary interest which 
is not registered in the Register of Members’ Interests or the subject of a 
pending notification must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 
days of the disclosure. 
 
Disclosable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests 
are defined at Paragraphs 5-7 and Appendix A of the Members’ Code of 
Conduct 
 

3. CONTRACT AWARD FOR IWORLD SUPPORT AND MAINTENANCE  
(PAGES 1 - 4) 
 

4. DATA CENTRE HOSTING SERVICES  (PAGES 5 - 8) 
 

5. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC   
 
Item 6 is likely to be subject to a motion to exclude the press and public be 
from the meeting as it contains exempt information as defined in Section 100a 
of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended by Section 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1985); paras 3, namely information relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that 
information)  
 

6. EXEMPT - DATA CENTRE HOSTING SERVICES  (PAGES 9 - 10) 
 



 

 
 
Felicity Foley, Committees Manager 
Tel – 020 8489 2919 
Fax – 020 8881 5218 
Email: felicity.foley@haringey.gov.uk 
 
Fiona Alderman 
Head of Legal & Governance (Monitoring Officer) 
George Meehan House, 294 High Road, Wood Green, N22 8JZ 
 
Wednesday, 15 March 2023 
 



 

Page 1 of 3  

 
Report for:  Cabinet Member Signing  
 
Title: Contract award for Iworld support and maintenance 
Report  
authorised by :  Jess Crowe – Director of Culture, Strategy & Engagement 
 
Lead Officer: Carla Villa, Principal Supplier Manager 0208 152 5553 
 
Ward(s) affected: N/A 
 
Report for Key/  
Non Key Decision: Key Decision 
 
 
1. Describe the issue under consideration 

This report seeks approval to award a contract to NEC Software Solutions (UK) 
Ltd for the provision of the support and maintenance for the Iworld Revenues 
and Benefits System for a period of 4 years. The current agreement is due to 
expire on 15th April 2023. 
 
A Cabinet decision is required under Contract Standing Orders (CSO) to award 
the contract for the above maintenance and support contract as permitted under 
CSO 3.0.1b (contracts over £500k). 
 

2. Recommendations  
The Cabinet Member for Finance and Local Investment to approve, in 

accordance with CSO 3.01(b) the award of contract to NEC Software Solutions 

(UK) Ltd for the provision of Iworld Support and maintenance in order to 

maintain the system for use by Council officers and partners. 

 

The Iworld contract will have an overall value of £569,176.97 for a duration of 

48 months and will include continued support for all Iworld modules currently 

used.  The contract will be charged annually at a cost of £142,294.24 p.a. 

 
3. Reasons for decision  

 
The Northgate IWorld application is core to the Councils’ Revenues and 

 Benefits processing, which allows collection of Council Tax and NNDR and 

 provision of Benefits to our residents. The current support and maintenance 

 contract expires on 15th April 2023.  

 

4. Alternative options considered 
Do Nothing – Not an option as iWorld is a critical system to the Council. 
 
The requirement is for ongoing support and maintenance of the existing 
application which only NEC can provide.  The contract will be called off a 
RM3821 Data Application Solutions Framework, which allows direct award if we 
already have the system. The cost of moving to an alternative solution would be 

Page 1 Agenda Item 3



 

Page 2 of 3  

costly and require 18months to 2 years to implement.  No alternate solution was 
considered.  

 
5. Background information 

 
The iWorld system provides the core system for the provision of processing 
both Council Tax and NNDR along with Benefit payments against both 
activities.  It allows the Council to fulfil its statutory functions. 
IWorld is a proprietary NEC system that cannot be supported by an alternate 
provider. A contract is required for the ongoing support and maintenance.  
 

6. Contribution to the Corporate Delivery Plan 2022-2024 High level Strategic 
outcomes’? 
 

Outcome 20: We will be a council that uses its resources in a sustainable way 
to prioritise the needs of the most vulnerable residents. Objective d) We will 
use our resources and policies to redistribute the financial burden on our 
residents.   The provision of this software supports the Council’s ability to 
provide its statutory function in respect of Revenues and Benefits 

 
7. Statutory Officers comments (Director of Finance ( procurement), Head of 

Legal and Governance, Equalities) 
 
7.1 Finance 
  

The cost of this four-year contract award for the provision of Iworld Support and 

maintenance services is £569,177 which represents an annual increase of 15% 

on the current contract which was agreed at a fixed price four years ago. The 
Digital Services contracts budget is insufficient to fully cover the increased cost 
of this new contract however an inflation provision has been included in the 
23/24 corporate budgets to cover, among other things, contract inflation and 
currency fluctuations within Digital contracts. This will be released to the 
Service at an appropriate point during the year to cover the budget shortfall. 
 
7.2 Strategic Procurement: PC 
 
CSO 7.01 b) permits the selection of a contractor from a public sector 
framework. RM3821 Data Application Solutions Framework is a framework 
compliant with CSO 7.01 b) and permits the use of a direct award where a 
system is intrinsically linked to use within the organisation procuring. The 
selection process is therefore compliant with the framework rules. 
CSO 9.07.1d) permits only the Cabinet to award a contract valued at £500,000 
or greater. Strategic Procurement support the recommendations in section 2 of 
this report to award this contract.    

 
7.3 Head of Legal and Governance  
 
The Head of Legal and Governance (Monitoring Officer) has been consulted in 
the preparation of this report. The services are above the relevant financial 
threshold of £213,477 (incl. VAT) and is therefore governed by the Public 
Contracts Regulations 2015 apply.   

Page 2



 

Page 3 of 3  

 
Where the value of the contract is in excess of £500,000, the decision to 
approve the contract award would ordinarily fall to Cabinet (CSO 9.07.1 (b) 
contracts valued at £500,000 or more).  In-between meetings of the Cabinet, 
the Leader may take any such decision or allocate to the Cabinet Member with 
the relevant portfolio (CSO 16.02). 
 
The Head of Legal and Governance (Monitoring Officer) confirms that there are 
no legal reasons preventing the Cabinet Member for Finance and Local 
Investment from approving the recommendations in this report. 

  
 7.4 Equality comments  

 
          The council has a Public Sector Equality Duty under the Equality Act (2010) to 

have due regard to the need to: 
• Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct 

prohibited under the Act 
• Advance equality of opportunity between people who share protected 

characteristics and people who do not 
• Foster good relations between people who share those characteristics and 

people who do not. 
  
 The three parts of the duty apply to the following protected characteristics: age, 

disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy/maternity, race, religion/faith, sex 
and sexual orientation. Marriage and civil partnership status applies to the first 
part of the duty. 

  
 Although it is not enforced in legislation as a protected characteristic, Haringey 

Council treats socioeconomic status as a local protected characteristic. 
  
 The proposals within this report are back-office functions and do not affect 
 equalities.  It is considered to be a neutral equalities impact. 
 
8. Use of Appendices  

None 
 

9. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 N/A 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 1 of 4  

Report for:  Cabinet Member Signing 
 
Title: Data Centre Hosting Services 

 
Report  
authorised by :  Director of Culture, Strategy & Engagement – Jess Crowe 
 
Lead Officer: Carla Villa, Principal Contracts & Supplier Manager x3111 
 
Ward(s) affected: All 
 
Report for Key/  
Non Key Decision: Key decision 
 
1. Describe the issue under consideration 

This report seeks Cabinet Member for Finance & Local Investment approval 
under CSO 9.07.1 (d) which provides that contracts valued at £500,000.00 (five 
hundred thousand pounds) or more may only be awarded, assigned, or novated 
by the Cabinet.  To award a contract to Crown Hosting Data Centres Ltd for 
Cody Park (secondary Data Centre (CPK DC) including within the contract a 
new Data Centre in Enfield (Meridian Pk MPK) to replace the current DC in 
River Park House (RPH DC) which is due for closure in 2024. 

 
2. Cabinet Member Introduction 
           N/A         
 
3. Recommendations  

 
To approve the award of the contract to Crown Hosting Data Centres Ltd for a 
period of 66 months from 1st May 2023 to 31st October 2028 for Cody Park and 
in Enfield at a total cost of £2,213,916.38  
 

4. Reasons for decision  
 
The RPH DC is due to be closed along with the building and we require a new 
DC to replace this.  
 
In 2023 Crown Commercial Service (CCS) released a new framework 
agreement  (ref no:RM6262 CH11 )where the services being offered offer 
greater benefits, (like Cloud services i.e., Microsoft, Google, AWS (Amazon 
Web Services) to the existing one.  This award is to secure the Enfield site rack 
space for Haringey servers.  Only 3 racks will be charged for from May until Nov 
2023 for the Enfield site with a further 12 to come online in Nov2023. This is to 
reduce the cost that would be incurred but allow us to secure a footprint within 
the new DC and plan for the ultimate closure of River Park House in 2024.  This 
project will take some time to plan and deliver.  All data connections/servers will 
need to be moved and done optimising availability of network services to both 
the staff and residents. 

 
5. Alternative options considered 

Page 5 Agenda Item 4



 

Page 2 of 4  

Do Nothing – We would have no provision for the replacement primary DC. 
This would remove any provision for resilience or the ability to be able to 
recover data, in light of a disaster recovery situation. 
 
Go Out to tender –The new framework RM6262 CH11 is a single supplier 
framework working in partnership with the Cabinet Office that allows call-off of 
required services.  The costs were negotiated and agreed by central 
government and offer best value and sustainability for those who they also 
provide services to. The new contract would allow a continuation of the great 
flexibility that allows services to be dialled up and down as required or 
technology evolves.  It was decided that Crown Hosting Data Centres offered 
the best service in terms of flexibility, value for money and sustainability. 

 
6. Background information 

 
Our existing RPH DC is our Primary DC and Cody Park the secondary DC 
offering resilience to the network.  The plan under Shared Digital was to have 
Spring Park and Cody Park but due to issues during the hot weather a few 
years ago we realised that Spring Park could not offer the resilience we 
required due to a network failure.  Spring Park has since been 
decommissioned.  The current contract we have with Crown Hosting Data 
Centres for Cody Park was purchased through a CCS government framework 
call off contract RM1069 that works in partnership with the Cabinet Office.  We 
have been waiting for Crown Hosting Data Centres to provide an alternative site 
to house our primary DC that is closer than the south coast.  This is being made 
available in q1 of 2023 in Enfield. The plan would be to transfer the servers 
currently housed in RPH to Enfield site but in order to reserve the space 
required, we would need to contract for them.   
 

Further details are contained in the exempt part of the report including a 

breakdown of pricing.  

7. Contribution to the Corporate Delivery Plan 2022-2024 High level Strategic 
outcomes’? 
 
Design smarter working environments to endorse modern and agile working. 

 
8. Statutory Officers comments (Director of Finance ( procurement), Head of 

Legal and Governance, Equalities) 
 
Finance  
The cost of this 66 months Data Centres hosting contract is £2,213,916.38.  A 
further breakdown of costs is included in the exempt part of the report. 
  
Procurement  
 
CSO 7.01 b) permits the selection of a contractor from an established public 
sector framework subject to the provisions of CSO 7.02 and 9.07. The Crown 
Commercial framework RM 6262 is a compliant framework and the 
procurement process undertaken is compliant with the rules of that framework. 

Page 6



 

Page 3 of 4  

As part of the due diligence when establishing the framework CCS 
commissioned an independent benchmarking of the proposal which confirmed 
delivery of better commercial terms and cost saving.  
 
Strategic Procurement support the recommendations in section 2 of this report. 

 
Head of Legal & Governance  
 
The Head of Legal and Governance (Monitoring Officer) has been consulted in 
the preparation of this report. 
 
Framework agreements are an approved procedure under the Public Contracts 
Regulations 2015 (the Regulations)  (Reg 33) and also provided for in the 
Council’s Contract Standing Orders ( CSO 7). 
 
Strategic Procurement has confirmed that the procurement has been conducted 
in accordance with the Regulations and with the provisions of the Framework 
Agreement. 
 
The award of the contract is a Key Decision and, as such, needs to comply with 
the Council’s governance provisions in respect of Key Decisions including 
publication in the Forward Plan. 
 
Normally a contract which is over £500,000 would be approved by Cabinet in 
accordance with CSO 9.07.1 d.  In between meetings of the Cabinet, the 
Leader may take any such decision or allocate to the Cabinet Member with the 
relevant portfolio (CSO 16.02). 
 
The Head of Legal and Governance (Monitoring Officer) confirms that there are 
no legal reasons preventing the Cabinet Member with relevant portfolio 
responsibilities from approving the recommendations in this report. 
 
 

 Equality  
 The council has a Public Sector Equality Duty under the Equality Act (2010) to 
 have due regard to the need to: 

• Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other 
conduct prohibited under the Act 
• Advance equality of opportunity between people who share protected 
characteristics and people who do not 
• Foster good relations between people who share those characteristics 
and people who do not. 
 
The three parts of the duty apply to the following protected characteristics: age, 
disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy/maternity, race, religion/faith, sex 
and sexual orientation. Marriage and civil partnership status applies to the first 
part of the duty. 
 
 
Although it is not enforced in legislation as a protected characteristic, Haringey 
Council treats socioeconomic status as a local protected characteristic. 
 

Page 7



 

Page 4 of 4  

The proposals within this report take account of these needs and the associate 
statutory duties and good practice guidelines.  

 
9. Use of Appendices 

 
Appendix A - Exempt report 
 

10. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
N/A 
 

 

Page 8



Document is exempt

Page 9 Agenda Item 6
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Contract award for Iworld support and maintenance
	4 Data Centre Hosting Services
	6 EXEMPT - Data Centre Hosting Services

